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Dear Shareholders,
National Bank of Greece has the pleasure to present Banca Romnească S.A. – Member of the NBG Group
Annual Report for 2008, a year totally different from the previous ones.
2008 represented the ending of a long period of healthy economic growth and beginning of a very difﬁcult
period for the global banking system and worldwide economy. Romania, like all the other European
countries, faced a contraction period with serious impact on the banking system, initially. Despite the
impairing external environment and the global volatile ﬁnancial conditions, our strategy of applying prudent
risk management policies and providing professional expertise, as well us using the beneﬁt of being member
of one of the largest ﬁnancial groups in the South-Eastern Europe, offered stability and solidity to Banca
Romaneasca in 2008.
In 2008, National Bank of Greece decided to increase the share capital of its Romanian subsidiary with
RON 355 million (almost EUR 100 million), assuring a more solid position in the eve of the turbulences of
the ﬁnancial market.
Banca Romaneasca remains one of the most liquid and well-capitalized banks in Romania, with a solvency
ratio more than comfortable (20.93%) comparing to the banking system average value of 13.76%. All
these attributes helped us maintain the conﬁdence of our customers and the capacity to support their
businesses.
Moreover, in terms of ﬁnancial results, at the end of 2008, Banca Romnească reached RON 61.6 million
net proﬁt (EUR 16.8), up with 69% as compared to the value posted in 2007. Having a solid position on
the ﬁnancial market, Banca Romaneasca is one of the most important subsidiaries that National Bank of
Greece has in the region.
Starting with 1997, Romania represents a key market for NBG and will continue to be on medium and long
term. Thus, Banca Romaneasca will always beneﬁt from NBG know-how and support in order to keep
building a strong regional identity in South-Eastern Europe.
Despite the gloomy outlook for 2009, we remain committed to the core vision of our Group, to build an
integrated ﬁnancial services platform that offers its customers professional expertise, high-quality and
diversiﬁed services and products.
On behalf of the National Bank of Greece, I would like to highlight the excellent outcome registered in 2008,
due to Banca Romaneasca’s team efforts, but also to our clients who trust in us and rely on our services.
We remain conﬁdent that our strength and solid position will lead to great opportunities in the future.

Yours sincerely,
Ioannis Pechlivanidis
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Bucharest
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Dear Shareholders,
2008 was an atypical year for Banca Românească, as for the entire banking system, Even if the market
conditions started to become difﬁcult in the second part of the year, the bank managed to end a new
successful year for its development, maintaining a satisfactory level of proﬁtability and efﬁciency.
The net proﬁt reached RON 61.6 million, representing an increase by 69% as compared to the level
registered in 2007. One of the main goals over the company is the permanent cost optimization leading to
an improved cost to income ratio but without affecting the planned developments in terms of network and
infrastructure.
As for the assets, their level increased with almost 35%, up to RON 9.2 billion (EUR 9.2 billion). The
market share increased up to 3%, the bank being ranked 13th on the Romanian market. In 2008 Banca
Românească continued to have a prudent and sustained lending process, both in corporate and retail
segments, aiming at having a healthy loan portfolio. At the end of 2008, Banca Romaneasca reported RON
5.99 (EUR 1.49) billion gross credit balance, up with 29% as compared to December 2007.
Banca Romaneasca was also determined to maintain the balance between assets and liabilities, succeeding
in having a positive evolution on the savings segment stimulated by innovative products and despite the
unfavourable market condition and the strong competition. Thus, the deposits reached RON 3,160 (EUR
786 million), which means an annual increase of 37%.
During 2008, Banca Românească opened 26 branches, reaching a total of 148 units. The Group size
and its regional presence allow Banca Românească to offer its ﬁnancial services to a growing number of
customers. Today, our clients base includes more than 200.000 customers.
Needless to say that our success in attaining these sustainable results is the outcome of strong and
professional management, experienced and committed Bank employees, as well as the strong support of
the main shareholder, National Bank of Greece.
We are conﬁdent about our future in Romania, being focused on exploring all the market opportunities.

Yours sincerely,
Andreas Maragkoudakis
CEO Banca Românească
Bucharest
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3. Main achievements in 2008
In 2008, the international banking system experienced major challenges. The rapid expansion of lending
process and the usage of sophisticated products determined serious problems in the USA and Europe.
The local banking system was also inﬂuenced by the international evolutions, the main problems occurred
being in terms of liquidity and capital adequacy.
However, Banca Romaneasca’s prudent approach adopted in the previous years, in line with the Group’s
Strategy, proved to be a successful one. Moreover, Banca Romaneasca beneﬁtted from the support of the
majority shareholders NBG and EBRD, the share capital being almost doubled. Under these circumstances,
the main achievements in 2008 were based on the following strategic approaches:
• Sustained proﬁtability: despite the particularity of 2008, Banca Româneasca managed to control its income
sources and keep operating costs under a strict control. The strategy reﬂected in the 69% annual growth of
the net proﬁt comparing to 2007, until RON 61.6 (EUR 16.8) million.
• Conservative risk policy:
Banca Româneasca adopted a prudential approach in terms of lending activity. In retail, Banca Romaneasca
succeeded in gaining important market share for mortgage loans, as well as for secured consumer loans.
The mortgage loans represented RON 1,844 (EUR 458) million of Banca Romaneasca’s portfolio, while the
consumer loans amounted to RON 2,196 (EUR 546). The large corporate lending increased substantially in
comparison with the SME lending, thus the risk is concentrated and covered by strong collaterals. The NPL
rate doubled in 2008, reaching 1.6% of the assets. Nevertheless, the NPLs were covered at a rate of 115%
by provisions, without taking into account the material guarantees.
However, due to the market weakening, the bank started to review the internal structures in the sense of
strengthening the collection and recovery activities and to improve the related regulations in this respect.
• Strong liquidity and capital adequacy:
The improvement of the loan-to-deposit ratio became one of the main priorities for the bank in order to maintain
the structural balance. The deposits volume increased in 2008 by 37 %, up to RON 3,160 (EUR 786) million,
while a successful product was launched, namely “Super Deposit”, which stimulated the savings attracted
from the population in the last part of the year with 5% despite the unfavourable market conditions.
At the end of 2008, due to the share capital increase by RON 355 million, Banca Romaneasca became one
of the most solid banks in terms of capital adequacy this ratio reaching 20.93%.
• Network expansion:
o At the end of 2008, Banca Romaneasca had 148 branches throughout the country covering all the major
cities, comparing with 122 at the end of 2007.
o Clients’ database increased by 22,000 customers, reaching over 210.000 customers by the end of 2008.
• Innovative products
Banca Romaneasca launched at the end of 2008 a new product for savings “Super Deposit account”, for
RON and EUR. Having 4 months maturity, the new product stimulated and protected population’s savings.
Super Deposit was a competitive product on the Romanian banking market, launched as a reaction to the
Romanians interest for their good saving administration.
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4. Management
4.1. Shareholders
National Bank of Greece is the major shareholder of Banca Romaneasca, owning 89.070% of the share
capital as of the end of 2008. The European Bank for Reconstruction and Development is also a signiﬁcant
shareholder of the Bank with 10.209% of the share capital. The Bank has 163 shareholders, out of which 13
legal entities and 150 individuals. The Extraordinary General Meetings of the Shareholders held in February
and November 2008 decided a signiﬁcant share capital increase in two stages in order to support the
strategic objectives established by the Business Plan for 2008. Thus, the share capital of the Bank was
increased by RON 355 million, up to the level of RON 835 (EUR 208) million which in local standard
represents RON 748 million.

4.2. Shareholder’s fundamental rights
Banca Romaneasca S.A. Member of National Bank of Greece Group’s Articles of Association includes the
following basic rights of the shareholders:
• Securing method of ownership registration
• Conveyance of transfer shares
• Obtaining relevant information on the corporation on a timely and regular basis
• Participating and voting in general shareholder meetings
• Electing the members of the Board of Directors
• Sharing in the proﬁts of the corporation
4. 3. NBG Highlights
4.3.1. International Presence of National Bank of Greece (NBG)
The National Bank of Greece, the oldest and largest among Greek banks, heads the strongest ﬁnancial
group in the country. It boosts a dynamic proﬁle internationally, particularly in the South-Eastern Europe
and the Eastern Mediterranean area.
Founded in 1841 as commercial bank, NBG has been listed on the Athens Stock Exchange since 1880.
Starting with October 1999, it has been also listed at the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE). NBG Group
holds a dominant position on the ﬁnancial services market in Greece, with a network around 575 branches
in Greece and 1,237 branches overseas, its customers holding over 9 million deposit accounts and more
than 1.5 million lending accounts with NBG. The NBG Group provides a full range of ﬁnancial products and
services that meet the constantly changing needs of corporate customers and private individuals, including
investment banking services, brokerage, insurance, asset management, leasing and factoring.
Besides Banca Romaneasca, the NBG Group controls in Romania the brokerage company ETEBA Romania
S.A., the Insurance - reinsurance company Garanta Asigurari S.A. and the leasing company NBG Leasing
IFN S.A.
4.3.2. Group ﬁnancial situation
As at December 31st, 2008, the Group’s total assets grew by 18.3 % from EUR 101.8 billion compared with
EUR 90.4 billion in 2007, primarily reﬂecting growth in the loan book.
In terms of proﬁtability, despite the speciﬁc market conditions, the Group succeeded, to a large extend,
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in preserving the net proﬁt in 2008 which declined by approximately 5 %, to EUR 1,546 million, compared
with EUR 1,625 million in 2007.
The cost/income ratio improved to 46.6 %, as compared with 51 % in the previous year, while the proﬁt
before tax totalled EUR 1,937mn.
4.3.3. Capital adequacy
At the end of 2008, the Tier I capital adequacy ratio was 10% and the total capital adequacy ratio was 10.3
%. These strong regulatory capital ratios, despite the substantial 18 % increase in weighted assets, reﬂect
the sustained proﬁtability of the Group, as well as actions taken such as the issuance of preference shares
totalling USD 625 million in June 2008. The combination of high liquidity and strong capital base ensures
the conditions for steady growth of the Group in Greece and abroad, and guarantees stability in the event
of a possible deterioration in the global economic environment.
4.3.4. Strong liquidity
The balanced growth in lending and deposit businesses across the Group as a whole helped keep the
loan-to-deposit ratio below 100 % in 2008, ranking it among the lowest in Europe. In 2008, the market
share of sight and savings deposits reached a record 34 % in the Greek market, raising the conﬁdence of
depositors in the ability of NBG to surpass the current crisis. The customer deposits comprise 75 % of total
sources of funding for the Group’s business, again ranking it among the leaders in Europe.
4.3.5. Awards
According to the industry journal The Banker, NBG is the Best Bank for Regulatory Capital in Greece and
99th in the world.
It is also, according to The Banker, the only Greek corporation listed in the top 100 Best Banking Brands
worldwide.
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5. Overview 2008
5.1. International context
After years of strong growth in the world economy and especially in emerging markets, the subprime ﬁnancial
crises which began in the summer of 2007 turned into a global ﬁnancial crisis, intensiﬁed especially after the
Lehman Brothers default and the selling-off of Merrill Lynch to Bank of America in September 2008. Global
economic conditions deteriorated rapidly as a result of losing business conﬁdence, decline in spending on
consumer durables, tighter credit conditions and declining house prices and equity valuations. Towards
the end of the year, most advanced economies were already on the brink of recession, while the economic
weakness began to spread more forcefully in countries with large external imbalances like Romania is.

5.2. Romanian economy
Romanian economy experienced a strong GDP growth, averaging 6.3 % per year during 2002-2007, which
was accompanied by a widening current account deﬁcit and strong net inﬂows of foreign capital. The
economic growth for 2008 was 7.1 % (the best performance in the region), the GDP reaching EUR 137
billion by the end of the year, meaning around EUR 6.4 thousands per capita. During the fourth quarter, the
GDP shrank to 2.9 % from the level of 9.0 % registered in the ﬁrst three quarters of the year, on the back
of a more reserved attitude towards consumption, lower lending accessibility, declining real estate prices.
However, despite the economic crisis which affected all countries in the EEC region, the GDP growth rate
is well above the European average, for both Q4 and full year 2008.
The national currency suffered a 6.7 % drop in Q4 and an overall devaluation of 10.4 % in 2008. Moreover,
the Romanian economy started to face the increasing probability of a hard lending scenario, as suggested
by the rating agencies in their downgrade reports. Standard & Poor’s and Fitch downgraded Romania’s
sovereign debt to BB+, below investment grade in October and November respectively. This increased the
country risk premium, reaching 7.45 % in November 2008, from an average of 0.3 % for 2007.
At the same time, the budgetary deﬁcit increased from 2.5 % in 2007 to 5.4 % in 2008 exceeding by far the
3 % threshold as agreed through the Maastricht treaty, whilst the general government debt-to-GDP of 13.6
% was below the 60 % target.
The inﬂation rate increased from 4.84 % in 2007 to a level of 7.85 % in 2008, stimulated by the exchange
rate volatility, especially Q1 and Q4 episodes
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5.3. Romanian banking sector
After a promising H1, the global crisis hit the Romanian banking sector in H2 of the year with the ﬁrst
visible effects in funding accessibility: on the back of market rumours, local interbank funds became almost
inaccessible, additional external ﬁnancing was not available anymore, or too expensive, and depositors
conﬁdence was seriously shaken. The ﬁnancial crisis spread rapidly in the real economy so, by the end of
2008, the increased default rates and lower collaterals’ value required for signiﬁcant increase in provision
stocks. Overall, the proﬁtability of the banking system as a whole decreased as a result of higher ﬁnancing
costs and increased provision expenses.
During 2008, there were no signiﬁcant movements in the structure of the Romanian banking sector. By the
end of the year, 43 credit institutions were operating in Romania, from which 37 were foreign banks with a
concentration in total banking assets of 88.3% and 41 were private banks with a concentration of 94.7%.
The territorial expansion (1,067 new branches) as well as the staff growth (5,965 new staff) were tempered
in the last quarter on the back of the crises, while the concentration degree in terms of top ﬁve banks in
total assets continued to decrease from 56.3 % in 2007 to 54.4 % by the end of 2008.
From the viewpoint of the capital homeland, during 2008 Greece increased its share in the aggregate
foreign capital switching the lead position with Austria, so by the end of March 2009, Greece was holding
30.7 %, Austria came in second with 23.5 % and third came the Netherlands with 11.9 %. Concerning
ﬁnancial intermediation, Romania continued to rank much below the average for the EU countries, in spite
of the signiﬁcant growth rates of non-government credit reported until H1 2008.
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Total banking assets after credit risk provisions increased in 2008 with 18% until September and with another
7 % in the last quarter of the year, reaching a level of EUR 78.9 billion in December 2008. In Q4 2008, the dynamic of loans to both corporate and household sectors slowed down in favour of government securities. The
slowdown was more noticeable in the case of LEU-denominated loans, while in case of loans denominated in
foreign currencies, banks relinquished almost entirely to lend in Swiss francs or Japanese yens.
Even though deposits taken from companies and households were declining during 2008 as a share in total
liabilities, they still represented 47.8 % (EUR 38 billion) from total, by the end of 2008. The share of external
ﬁnancing in total liabilities increased in the ﬁrst eleven months with 3.4 % in the detriment of local ﬁnancing,
where deposits taken from non-banking sector decreased with 5.6 %. Loans to deposits ratio rose to 131 %
from 115 % as at the end of 2007
In terms of asset quality, the NPL ratio as per local norms reached a level of 0.3% in December 2008. As
a result of asset quality deterioration, but also due to higher funding costs and shrinking lending volumes,
the overall Romanian banking system ROE and ROA decreased in the last quarter of 2008 with 2.37 % and
0.21 %, to a level of 17.04 % for ROE and 1.56 % for ROA respectively. The cost to income ratio was rapidly
decreasing starting with the last quarter of 2008, as a result of cost cutting programs implemented in all Romanian banks to mitigate the crisis effects.
The Romanian banking system remained adequately capitalized with a CAD ratio of 13.76 % by the end of
2008. Due to the volatile and deteriorating operating environment and also due to the weak internal capital
generation, the National Bank of Romania (NBR) strengthened the monitoring of the ﬁnancial and prudential
standing of credit institutions.
Despite the worsening of ﬁnancial markets conditions starting with the end of 2008, the Romanian banking
market still offers good opportunities for new entrants such as lower level of ﬁnancial intermediation and long
term growth potential, weaker competitive pressures and still lower concentration degree.
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6. Bank’s main activities
6.1. Retail Business
2008 was a challenging year for the retail lending business of Banca Romaneasca in managing the rapid
growth from the ﬁrst 3 quarters and the slowing down from the Q4 caused by the negative international
environment.
The efforts led to a slow increase of the market share for consumer loans, while a substantial increase of
approx. 50% was registered for mortgage loans, compared to the end of 2007. The growth from 2008 was
possible thanks to the successful campaigns launched during the year, like the “Cash back” campaign for
mortgage loans.
Following the depreciation of the international economic environment, Banca Romaneasca mainly focused
on raising deposits from the local market. After a successful launching of the savings account product in
May 2008, Banca Romaneasca continued promoting the deposit products. As an immediate result, the
total deposits increased with 46.9 % in September 2008 compared to the end of 2007.
In the last months of 2008, following the decline of the local environment and the high competition for deposits,
the interest rates offered in the market doubled as compared with the end of 2007. Banca Romaneasca
launched successful campaigns in September (“Huge interest for your savings”) and November (“Save like
you’ve never saved before”) that positioned the bank as one of the best in the market, the total deposits
increasing with 20.35% between September and December 2008.
6.2. Corporate
Corporate loans amounted by the end of 2008 at RON 1,922 billion (32% of total lending) reduced during
the year by 15 %, fully due to transfers of RON 1.8 billion loans abroad.
In order for the bank to ensure high quality servicing, the corporate clients are segmented into Large
Corporate and SMEs, the two categories being serviced by dedicated and specialized staff within branch
network, Large Corporate Department and the SME Department. For the same purpose, Banca Romaneasca
continued its project aiming to fully centralize the SME loans approval process (currently covering only
Bucharest area).
SME loans, deﬁned as loans to companies with an annual turnover up to EUR 5.0 million and exposures no
greater than EUR 1.5 million, represented 47% of Corporate lending comparing with 35% in 2007, while the
exposures per sectors were fairly well diversiﬁed. One of the most dynamic line of business, SME lending
displayed a steady increase during the ﬁrst three quarters of the year; the last quarter evolution was marked
on one hand by the loans transferred abroad, and on the other hand, by the negative conditions that started
to be present in the economy towards the end of year.
The funding from corporate customers increased by 10 %.
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6.3. Operations
During 2008 a number of critical projects for the bank’s activity and overall development were
centralized in order to improve efﬁciency and cost control, to bring a better management of transactions
and to increase the process control over the areas of impact. Moreover, some of these projects were
developed in alignment with national or EU projects related to payment system and also with the bank’s
strategy.
In January 2008, Banca Romaneasca adhered to SEPA Credit Transfer Scheme along with all the other
subsidiaries of NBG, and also to DIAS Transfer System in Greece, as indirect participant through NBG, thus
adding enhancements in the area of funds transfers.
One of the main projects developed during 2008 was the centralization and automation of the settlement
of debit instruments. The new electronic settlement system implemented in October 2008, conducted by
the NBR and payments authority – TRANSFOND - reduced the settlement period of the debit instruments
and fastened the collection of such receivables. Together with this project, the centralization of reporting of
payment incidents from debit instruments was completed.
Under the electronic payments services, Banca Romaneasca continued its long time agent partnership
with Western Union in the remittances business, continuing to provide fast money transfers under the
Western Union brand through own branches, as well as in partnership with other sub-agents.
For the Trade Finance back ofﬁce activities, the year 2008 marked the completion of the full centralization
of the activities referring to issuance and administration of letters of guarantee and letters of credit. By the
end of the year, an integrated software application for Trade Finance activities became also operational.
The Bank also centralized the procurement process, developing speciﬁc acquisition procedure in line with
the Group policy, which generated an increased consumption control over headquarters and network.
Banca Romaneasca also developed its range of products and services by launching custody and depository
activities.
6.4. Human Resources
HR strategic guidelines for 2008 meant to ensure the necessary support for the organic growth of the
branch network and also for the business structure and processes. The effectiveness and efﬁciency of the
recruitment activity were paramount.
At the same time, the employees’ development was sustained through speciﬁc training programs, addressing
the enhancement of both soft and operational skills.
Another major coordinate was linked to Group HR integration: cooperating in NBG Group strategic HR
projects such as – Group Recruitment Policy, Management reporting and SAP implementation.
Therefore, there were internal developments in HR area, such as recruitment and selection, payroll, internal
trainers etc., having as main purpose the employees’ development and creation of functional frameworks
of the related processes aiming to sustain the achievements of the bank’s strategic objectives.
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6.5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
2008 represented a year full of activities through which Banca Romaneasca was involved in solving
different social problems, as well as offering support in promoting some humanitarian initiatives, by granting
sponsorships and it got involved in social and cultural events in Bucharest and throughout the country,
such as: festivals, art exhibitions and support for unfavoured children.
Banca Romaneasca ended year 2008, by bringing for the ﬁrst time in Romania one of the most valuable
art collections in the world, Simon Spierer “A forest of sculptures” collection, continuing in this way the
tradition of the parent bank, National Bank of Greece, to support arts and cultural events.
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7. Risk Management and Corporate Governance
The bank acknowledges the need for enhanced risk management, through its speciﬁc Risk Unit, by
measuring, analyzing and managing the risks entailed in all its business activities, the main mission for
2008 having been the following:
• Ongoing risk monitoring;
• Controlling, monitoring, evaluating risks undertaken by the business units and ensuring adequate
risk management tools;
• Measuring and reporting risk, controlling operational risk and risk management systems.
7.1. Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the current or prospective risk to earnings and capital arising from an obligor’s failure
to meet the terms of any contract with the institution or otherwise fail to perform as agreed.
The Bank’s objective was to maintain appropriate on-going credit administration, measurement and
monitoring processes, including in particular:
• Sufﬁcient and fully documented credit risk policies, ensuring consistency across the Bank and
acknowledging key regulatory requirements;
• Information systems and analytical techniques that enable measurement of credit risk inherent in
all relevant activities, providing adequate information on the composition of the credit portfolio;
• Appropriate and efﬁcient management information systems for the area of lending activity, reports
regarding the Bank’s loan portfolio evolution, in order to identify speciﬁc risks, including the credit
risk concentration.
7.2. Market Risk
The market risk was limited during 2008, as the bank was not deeply involved in trading activities. All the
securities – treasury bills, certiﬁcates of deposit issued by the National Bank of Romania and bonds bearing
the Ministry of Public Finance guarantee – were booked in the available for sale portfolio.
The most signiﬁcant types of Market Risk to which the Bank is exposed to are the following:
• Foreign Exchange Risk for which the bank calculates the Value-at-Risk of the Open Currency
Position on a daily basis and monitors the related limits to observe the NBR regulations
provisions and the internally deﬁned limits. The bank performs spot, forward and foreign currency
swap transactions but also only with pre approved counterparties and within the set-up limits.
• Interest Rate Risk- For monitoring the impact of the Interest Rate Risk, the bank periodically
produces the Interest Rate Gap Report, which estimates the interest rate risk in the balance sheet.

7.3. Liquidity Risk
The bank’s objective regarding the liquidity risk is to maintain an adequate liquidity level provided that the
necessary sources are ensured to support the budget objectives.
For monitoring the impact of the liquidity risk, the bank employs the following methodologies: Liquidity Gap
Report, Large Providers of Funds Report and Daily Liquidity Cash Flow.
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7.4. Operational Risk
Banca Romaneasca has established the Operational Risk Management Framework, in order to address
operational risks effectively and meet the requirements of regulatory compliance. Through this framework
four methodologies have been introduced for monitoring the operational risk, namely: Risk Control and Self
Assessment, Key Risk Indicators, Loss Event Data Collection and Action Planning.
The bank also reviewed and monitored the operational risk proﬁle on an ongoing basis, developing and
implementing appropriate action plans in order to make sure that the necessary measures were in place
for mitigating operational risks.
7.5. Capital Adequacy
In order to ensure the Bank’s compliance with the regulatory framework, as well as to provide the
Bank’s Management with consistent risk management information, the Bank was monitoring the capital
requirements and capital adequacy in accordance with the current “Basel II” framework.
The bank used standardized approach for credit risk and the basic indicator approach for operational risk.
In case of market risk, the bank also computed capital requirements for foreign exchange risk in accordance
with the National Bank of Romania regulations.
7.6. Corporate Governance
Corporate Governance principles have been applied observing the legal and the Group guidelines in
order to ensure a better direction, administration and control of the Bank, mainly in relation between its
shareholders, board of directors and management. Thus, the Bank continued to improve the corporate
governance environment based on the best practice, Group guidelines and on an effective risk management
culture.
The Board of Directors works together with the executive management of Banca Romaneasca to exercise
the duties delegated by the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders and to set the main activity and
development guidelines of the Bank.
On January 31st, 2008, the Board of Directors approved the Regulation regarding the Organization and
Functioning of the Executive Committee, in line with the Group’s policies and according to the NBR Norm
no. 17/2003, the provisions of Banca Romaneasca Functioning Rules and other internal regulations aiming
for the smooth development of the Bank’s current activity within the prerogatives comprised in the Articles
of Associations. Thus, the Executive Committee became focussed on the main issues of the bank, such
us the implementation of the Bank’s strategy and policies, assessment of the market evolution and the
competition within the ﬁnancial-banking ﬁeld, decision-making on the bank’s Business Plan and on the
related Budget execution and assessment of the main risk issues arose by the Risk Management of the
bank together with the Risk Management Committee.
The fast growing corporate business and the yearning of the bank to get the loan approval process better
and more efﬁcient observing the risk strategies applied at the Group level and to attract new clients,
drove the Board of Directors to set up the Executive Corporate Credit Committee in compliance with the
guidelines of the National Bank of Greece stipulating a harmonization of the Credit Approval process

in all the subsidiaries.
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Also, the Board continued the process of revision and issuing the Bank’s policies aligning them both to
the Group policies and to the local regulations, according to the bank’s development stage, strategy and
market conditions. Thus, new and revised strategies were approved in order to be implemented starting
2008, such us IT Strategy for 2008-2009, Liquidity Management Strategy in Crisis Conditions and Risk
Strategy for Signiﬁcant Risks.
In creating a favourable business environment within the European Union and NBG Group, a speciﬁc
project was initiated under NBG’s auspices, for the alignment of the bank to MiFID requirements in order
to ensure a single market for wholesale ﬁnancial services, provide an open and secure retail market and
increase competition and consumer protection in investment services.
7.7. Compliance
The compliance activity of the Bank is governed by the Regulatory Compliance Policy which is in line with
the NBG Group Policy.
In 2008, the compliance activity was strengthened so as to cover the powers and responsibilities set up in
the internal regulations and general regulatory compliance framework.
Thus, the Bank implemented a three-level defence strategy in order to implement the compliance
mechanism.
An important aim was also to ensure that the internal policies and procedures were harmonized with the
applicable regulatory framework both at EU and local level, such as the Third European Directive translated
into Romanian legislation through amendments of Law 656/2002 on the prevention and sanctioning of
money laundering and on the initiation of measures for the prevention and ﬁghting against ﬁnancing terrorist
activities. This normative document, together with the entire package of application norms, determined
important changes in banking activity in the process of accepting, identifying, verifying, monitoring and
reporting of customers, based on money laundering risk.
The compliance activity was improved by updating its regulatory framework according to the legal and
Group requirements. There was also an improvement of the systems by implementing an automated tool
for monitoring and answering to the authorities’ requests and a speciﬁc reporting system in relationship
with AML Ofﬁce.
Staff training was also an important achievement during 2008, activities such as seminars, meetings and
e-learning programs being offered to a large number of people and organized in order to improve the
professional skills of the employees.
7.8. Internal Audit
The internal audit activity functions as an independent structure, its scope of work covering every activity
and every entity of the Bank.
The Internal Audit function of the Bank performs an independent and objective, assurance and consulting
activity designed to ensure compliance with the policies and procedures, so as to add value and improve
the organization’s operational effectiveness.
During 2008, the NBG Group project for incorporation and alignment of the various Internal Audit Units of
its subsidiaries was successfully implemented in the Bank. Thus, common guideline policies and control
tools, which represent the new integrated internal audit methodology (based on COSO-ERM principles and
harmonized with IIA Standards), were implemented on a pilot basis.
The annual audit plan, prepared by incorporating the new methodology, provided for a high level of intraGroup synergies so as to cover the key high-risk areas, as well as a fair share of mid-range risks.
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7.9. Bank’s structure
7.9.1 Board of Directors and Executive Committee
The Bank’s Board of Directors has the mission to assure the strategic targets and to establish the general
action plan, the risk policies and the main objectives of the bank. The Board of Directors has organized
at its level some consultative committees such us: Audit Committee and Compensation and Performance
Committee in order to better support the decision-making process.
Audit Committee regularly reports to the Board of Directors on internal and external audit issues and
encourages the communication between the members of the Board of Directors, managers of the credit
institution, internal audit, ﬁnancial auditor, National Bank of Romania etc.
The Commission of Compensation and Performance handles the negotiations of the salary and bonuses
granted to the Bank’s Managers and to the other categories of personnel based on the Board decision in
this respect.
According to the new structure of the shareholding and based on the National Bank of Romania approval,
the Board of Directors membership was changed in 2008 based on the Ordinary General Meeting of
the Shareholders decision from May 2008, observing the provisions of the Articles of Association in this
respect.
The structure of the Board of Directors by the end of 2008 was the following:
Ioannis Pechlivanidis – Chairman, Andreas Theodoros Maragkoudakis – Deputy Chairman, Agis Leopoulos
– Deputy Chairman and Konstantinos Bratos, Anastasios Lizos, Crina Cosma, Traian Halalai, Petru Rares,
Ioan Stancu, and Nicholaos Stamboulis as members.
The most important decisions of the Board of Directors made during 2008 refer to the :
Business Plan and the related Budget for 2008
Amendments to the Loan Loss Impairment Policy
Amendments to the Risk Management Strategy for Signiﬁcant Risks 2007/2008
Internal Audit Plan for 2008
• Set-up of the Executive Corporate Credit Committee
• IT Strategy for 2008-2009
• Reputational Risk Policy
• Anti-fraud Policy
• Information Security Policy
• Liquidity Management Strategy in Crisis Conditions
• Risk Management Strategy for 2008 – 2009
• Know Your Customer Policy
• Liquidity Risk Strategy for 2008
The Executive Committee role is to observe the application of the internal strategy and policies, the
achievement of revenues and proﬁtability, the compliance with risk policies and risk management and the
carrying out of human resources policy.
The Board of Directors makes sure that all the legal and supervisory norms governing the Romanian banking
activity are applied and carefully monitors that all processes and staff activities are in full compliance.
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During 2008, the executive management was provided by the Executive Committee, composed of 8
members, as follows: Mr. Andreas Maragkoudakis – Chairman, Mrs. Crina Cosma – Deputy Chairman, and
Mr. Traian Halalai, Mr. Cosmin Calin, Mr. Lakis Kouninis, Mr. Nektarios Vrongistinos, Mr. Codin Nastase and
Mr. Daniel Antonescu, as members.
7.9.2 The Bank’s Statutory Committees
The bank’s organisational structure has also several decisional committees and their role is to assist the
executive management according to the set of responsibilities, as approved within the Bank.
These committees are: Credit Committee, Executive Corporate Credit Committee, Assets & Liabilities
Committee, Risk Management Committee and Operations Committee.
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8. Banca Romaneasca Financial Results
Until the global crisis impacted the world economy in the last quarter of 2008, Banca Romaneasca ﬁnancial
results encountered an upward trend as in the previous years: total assets increased during 2008 with
35%, operating proﬁts with 120% and the net proﬁt with 69%.
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Banca Romaneasca total assets recorded a peak as at end of 2008 amounting to RON 9,200 million up
35% yoy on the back of intensiﬁed lending activity during ﬁrst three quarters of 2008. From the total of 2.4
billion RON increase in total assets, 54% is due to lending activities while 49% is coming from minimum
reserve increase as per local regulations.
Total assets market share by the end of 2008 according with the Central Bank data was 2.9% versus the
previous year level of 2.7% which situated BROM at 13 position in the market.
During 2008 Banca Romaneasca continued its organic growth through expanding the network from 122
branches as at the end of 2007 up to 148 as at December 2008, resulting in a 12% increase of customers
number reaching the level of 210,092 for end of year.

The lending activity throughout the ﬁrst three quarters of 2008 encountered an accelerated upward trend,
temperated in the last quarter as lending policies have been substantially tightened following the crisis and
prudent risk management policies were implemented.
Total loans granted by Banca Romaneasca in 2008 was up by 29% yoy, amounting to RON 5,987 million,
the retail hiked by 71%, while corporate is down by 15% on the back of loans abroad cross booked.
The lending market share was 3.1% as at December 31, 2008, encompassing the loans granted and
booked directly in Romania.
Retail Market share was 4.1%, increasing by 24% comparing with the previous year level (3.3%), while
Corporate lending market share decrease from 3.1% in 2007 to 2.0% in 2008, mainly due to loans cross
booked abroad the country.
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LENDING

Retail Lending Portfolio Structure

Retail Lending Currency Structure

Retail loans constitute the bulk of total lending
(68%) as compared to corporate lending (32%)
and amounted by the end of 2008 at RONm 4,065 .
Around 68% from retail exposures are mortgage
and consumers lending secured by real estate,
98% based in foreign currency with long-term
maturities and. The remaining 32% are unsecured
retail loans denominated mostly in local currency
(84%), in contrast our local peers competitors,
where foreign currency unsecured lending has
a much higher share (50%), which is a positive
factor for BROM

Unsecured loans

Secured loans

Corporate portofolio per industries
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Corporate loans amounted by the end of year
2008 at RON 1,922 (32% of total lending) reduced
during the year by 15%, fully due to transfers of 1.8
billion RON loans abroad.
SME loans constitute 47% (2007: 40%) of corporate
lending, deﬁned as loans to companies with a
turnover of less than EUR 5.0m and exposures of
less than EUR 1.5m.
Exposures per sectors sectors are fairly well
diversiﬁed.
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FUNDING
During 2008 Banca Romaneasca increased its share capital with RON 355.4 million (up 74% yoy), up to
RON 835.3 million. The statutory issued share capital of Banca Românească SA is stated at RON 748.6
million divided into 374,324,110 ordinary shares with a face value of RON 2 each. The difference between
the nominal value of the statutory share capital of RON 748,648 thousands and the carrying value of RON
835,339 is resulting from application of IAS 29 Hyperinﬂationary economies until mid of 2004. The bank did
not pay dividends for 2008 and 2007, and there are no plans to begin payment.
The funding from customers increased by
37% on the back of deposits from individuals
(up 77% yoy) and corporate deposits (up
10% yoy).
Total deposits from customers amounted to
RON 3,160 million.
Banca Romaneasca deposits market share
recorded 2.1% as at December 31, 2008.

The funding from customers is assured in
a balancing position by retail (52%) and
corporate (48%).
The main contributors to funding are RON
deposits with 60%, followed by EUR with 37%.

The main sources of funding for Banca
Romaneasca as at December 31, 2008 was
the money market, contributing with RON
4,720 million (29% up yoy), mainly attracted
from NBG(89%).
Beside the deposits above mentioned,
NBG funded Banca Romaneasca with a
subordinated loan amounting to RON 262
million as at the year end 2008.
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INCOME STATEMENT
Banca Romaneasca recorded a net proﬁt of RON 62 million up 69% yoy with the biggest contribution
coming from total net revenues which increased by 1.6 times.

The main drivers of net revenues increased
are net interest income with RON 223 million
(29% increase yoy), net fee and commissions
with RON 40 million (15% up yoy) and foreign
exchange gains with RON 139 million (223%
increase yoy mainly generated by swap deals).
The ﬁnancial crisis cumulated with Romania
investment downgrade inﬂuenced the banks
proﬁts cost of funding jumped in the fourth
quarter of 2008. The same time the shrinking
of interest rates benchmark swallowed from
banks income on a market with a low lending
activity.
Therefore the net interest margin was down in
2008 to 3.86% from 4.76% in 2007.
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Staff Costs
Administrative
Depreciation
Other operating
expenses

The operating expenses hiked by 38% yoy
up to RON 257 million as a consequence of
accelerating network expansion.
The operating expenses totaled RON 257.3
million the main drivers were: staff costs with
48%, administrative expenses weight of 43%
and ﬁxed assets depreciation of 8%.
The average annual staff cost per employee
was RON 72 thousands up 21% yoy. The
personnel rotation slowed down starting with
the fourth quarter of 2008 which implied higher
staff costs from year to year.

Due to the deterioration of the economic environment by the end of 2008 Banca Romaneasca’ NPL ratio
increased from 0.6% by the end of 2007 to 1.6% in December 2009, which transposed in credit risk costs
amounted to RON 72 million at ye 2008, more than three times the value recorded at ye 2007 (RON 22
million).
Even though the credit risk cost hiked more than three times the value recorded at ye 2007, the operating is
higher with 120% than 2007 level, increasing from RON 66 million to RON 145 million by the end of 2008.
The return on assets increased from 0.87% as of 2007 to a level of at 0.91%, while the return on equity
recorded 9.85% as at December 31, 2008 versus the previous year level of 8.48%.
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I.

INCOME STATEMENT

Notes

Interest income
Interest expense

3
3

Net interest income
Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expense

4.1
4.1

Net fees and commission income
Dividend income
Net trading income
Net gain/ (loss) from investment securities
Credit loss expense
Other operating income
Staff Costs
Administrative expenses
Depreciation / Amortization expenses
Other operating expenses

4.2
6
5
5
5
5

Operating profit
Share of profit of associates
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

7

December 31,
2008

December 31,
2007

690,056
(467,362)

374,639
(201,919)

222,694

172,720

47,985
(7,634)

39,023
(3,889)

40,351

35,134

535
138,659
(139)
(72,261)
323
(122,559)
(110,797)
(19,421)
(4,570)

661
42,869
1,150
(22,462)
362
(86,935)
(85,613)
(13,032)
(1,342)

72,815

43,512

-

-

72,815

43,512

(11,167)

(7,038)

61,648

36,474

Authorized for issue by the management on July 31, 2009.

Crina Cosma
Deputy General Manager
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II. BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Cash and short term funds
Due from National Bank of Romania
Investment securities available-for-sale
Due from other banks
Derivative Financial Instruments
Loans and advances to customers, net
Equity investments available-for-sale
Intangible assets
Property and Equipment
Other assets

Notes

December 31,
2008

December 31,
2007

8
9
10
11
25.2.2
12
14
15
15
13

97,759
2,569,769
109,564
286,273
48,470
5,877,254
836
35,050
126,518
48,076

59,529
1,401,978
36,459
565,462
1,066
4,603,647
547
27,892
104,132
19,276

9,199,569

6,819,988

4,720,322
3,160,450
63,911
262,444
13,504
2,600
1,421
28,585

3,665,698
2,301,527
45,825
237,450
7,729
1,085
28,181

8,253,237

6,287,495

835,339
110,993

479,907
52,586

946,332

532,493

9,199,569

6,819,988

Total assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks
Due for customers
Derivative Financial Instruments
Other borrowed funds
Deferred tax liabilities
Current income taxes
Retirement benefit obligations
Other liabilities

16
17
25.2.2
18
7
20
19

Total liabilities
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
Accumulated result

21

Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Authorized for issue by the management on July 31, 2009.

Crina Cosma
Deputy General Manager
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Traian Halalai
Chief Financial Officer
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III. CASH FLOW STATEMENT

December 31,

December 31,

2008

2007

72,815

43,512

-

-

92,004

33,597

plant and equipment
Amortization/ impairment losses on intangible assets

17,072
2,348

11,634
1,398

Credit loss expense
Impairment losses on investments available for sale

72,261
-

22,462
63

(535)

(661)

858

61

-

(1,360)

Net (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:

(2,677,079)

(2,796,667)

Minimum obligatory reserves with NBR
Available for sale securities
Net loans and advances to customers
Other assets

(1,167,789)
(101,249)
(1,345,868)
(32,855)

(443,304)
378
(2,383,912)
(14,588)

(29,318)

44,759

Net increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:

1,938,697

3,174,551

Due to banks
Due to customers
Income taxes paid
Other liabilities

1,079,618
858,923
(584)
740

1,999,541
1,163,761
11,249

Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities

(573,563)

454,993

Cash flow used in investing activities
Dividends income

(22,828)
535

(52,045)
661

Net purchases of intangible assets
Net purchase of property and equipment

(9,506)
(37,857)

(16,157)
(45,776)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile net profit
to cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities
Non-cash items included in net profit and
other adjustments:
Depreciation/ impairment losses on property,

Dividends income
Net loss on sale of property
and equipment
Net realised losses on sales
of available for sale investment securities

Net derivative financial instruments
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December 31,

December 31,

2008

2007

24,000

9,227

355,431
355,431

(9,212)
(9,212)
-

(240,959)

393,736

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of period:

624,991

231,255

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of period (see Note 23)

384,032

624,991

Proceeds from sale and redemption of available for sale
securities
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowed funds
Issue of share capital
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Authorized for issue by the management on July 31, 2009.

Crina Cosma
Deputy General Manager
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Chief Financial Officer
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IV. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Balance as at January 1, 2007
Prior year errors
Issue of share capital
Retained earnings appropriation
Unrealized gains/ losses on
available for sale securities – net
of tax effect
Tax on items taken directly to or
transferred from equity
Current year result appropriation
Net profit for the year
Balance as at December 31,
2007
Issue of share capital
Retained earnings appropriation
Unrealized gains/ losses on
available for sale securities – net
of tax effect
Tax on items taken directly to or
transferred from equity
Current year result appropriation
Net profit of the year
Balance as at December 31,
2008

Share
capital

Reserves

Other retained
earnings
available to
shareholders

479,907
-

87,000
922

(72,955)
(2,628)
(922)

493,952
(2,628)
-

-

(964)

-

(964)

-

5,658
-

-

5,658
-

-

-

36,474

36,474

479,907

92,616

(40,031)

532,492

355,432
-

2,627

(2,627)

355,432
-

-

(3,240)

-

(3,240)

-

-

-

-

-

-

61,648

61,648

835,339

92,003

18,990

946,332

Total

Authorized for issue by the management on July 31, 2009.

Crina Cosma
Deputy General Manager
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Chief Financial Officer

$QQXDO5HSRUW
V. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
01. BASIS OF PREPARATION
These ﬁnancial statements of Banca Romaneasca S.A. are prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and its interpretation adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). The ﬁnancial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except
for available for sale ﬁnancial instruments which have been measured at fair value.
The Bank maintains its accounting booking and prepares a set of ﬁnancial statements in accordance
with Romanian Accounting Law and National Bank of Romania regulations. The underlying accounting
records have been adjusted to reﬂect the differences between the statutory accounts and the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Financial Reporting Standards Committee.
Accordingly, some adjustments have been made to the statutory accounts as have been considered
necessary to bring the ﬁnancial statements in line with IFRS.
The main differences between statutory accounts and IFRS ﬁnancial statements relate to income tax,
methodologies for determining the allowance for loan losses and overdue interest, recognition of loans at
amortized cost and the prior years hyperinﬂation accounting.
These IFRS ﬁnancial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting. In this context, income
and expenses are recognized when they occur and they are recorded in the reporting period to which they
relate. The IFRS ﬁnancial statements have also been prepared under the exercise of prudence to the extent
that losses are recognized as soon as they are foreseeable.
The accompanying ﬁnancial statements are presented in Romanian lei (“RON”), which is the Bank’s
functional currency, rounded to the nearest thousand.

02. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates
The preparation of the ﬁnancial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the management to make
estimations and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the ﬁnancial statements and reported amount of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period.
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Reclassiﬁcation of comparative amounts
The amount of RON 68 thousands representing maintenance cost was reclassiﬁed from operating expenses
to administrative expenses line in the income statement for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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The amount of RON 2,459 thousands representing advances for payments in relation to ﬁxed assets was
reclassiﬁed for 2007 from property, plant and equipment to other assets for comparability reasons.
Administrative and third parties services expenses were detailed for comparability in the notes for the year
ended December 31, 2007.
Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the transaction
date. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of transactions denominated in foreign currency
are included in income statement at the time of settlement using the exchange rate ruling on that date.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are expressed in RON at the balance
sheet date. At December 31, 2008 the principal exchange rates used for translating foreign currency
denominated balances was EURO 1 = RON 3.9852 and USD 1 = RON 2.8342 (December 31, 2007: EURO
1 = RON 3.6102 and USD 1 = RON 2.4564). Foreign currency gains and losses arising from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement of the year.
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03. INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest income
Placement with banks
Investment securities
Loans to customers, out of which:
individuals
companies

Interest expense
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Subordinated loan

Net interest income

2008

2007

46,759
4,356
638,941
388,449
250,492

24,552
3,170
346,917
208,770
138,147

690,056

374,639

(273,748)
(179,838)
(13,776)

(116,490)
(74,460)
(10,969)

(467,362)

(201,919)

222,694

172,720

2008

2007

18
3,335
512
2,058
1,140
2,595
33,092
4,416
819

1
3,667
340
14
548
2,598
28,520
2,344
991

47,985

39,023

(83)
(1,304)
(1)
(96)
(2,652)
(517)
(2,024)
(957)

(993)
(2,711)
(8)
(177)

(7,634)

(3,889)

40,351

35,134

04.1 FEE INCOME AND EXPENSE

Fees and commission income
Residential mortgage
Credit cards
Consumer loans
Corporate loans
Imports - Exports
Letters of guarantee
Transfer of funds
Deposit accounts fee
Other

Fee and commission expense
Brokerage
Credit cards
Letters of guarantee
Imports and exports
Transfer of funds
Consumer loans intermediation fees
Mortgage loans intermediation fees
Corporate credit
Other

Net fees and commission income
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04.2 NET TRADING INCOME

FX transactions with clients
Money market spot deals
Swap deals (forward leg)
Forward deals
Revaluation of balance sheet position

2008
42,864
12,992
(83,506)
7,047
159,262

2007
29,788
(1,576)
(81,220)
95,877

Total

138,659

42,869

2008
(84,634)
(25,388)
(3,096)
(9,098)
(2,784)
(676)
(161)
(874)
(1,499)
(2,427)
(677)
(343)

2007
(58,089)
(18,070)
(3,631)
(6,900)
(2,077)
(620)
(245)
(380)
(1,732)
(1,846)
(245)

(122,559)

(86,935)

05. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Wages and Salaries
Social security costs
Bonuses and other compensation expenses
Other staff costs
Meal tickets
Medical care
Recruitment costs
Welfare
Trainings
Retention benefit (staff loans)
Other

Pension costs - defined benefit plans
Staff costs

The retention beneﬁts for bank staff from loans granted with lower interest rates are presented as an
increase to interest income simultaneously with an increase in other staff costs. For 2007 impact is not
included in the ﬁnancial statement due to immateriality, as this type of loans were granted to employees
beginning with end of 2007.

Duties and taxes
Telecommunications
Rentals
Insurance costs
Other utilities and rentals
Board of Directors fees
Traveling expenses
Promotion and advertisement
Stationary - other consumables
Maintenance and other related expenses
Other administrative expenses
Administrative and third parties services
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2008
(1,127)
(11,483)
(33,402)
(6,280)
(4,517)
(58)
(1,310)
(15,185)
(5,864)
(9,986)
(21,585)

2007
(1,886)
(6,313)
(23,420)
(5,009)
(3,834)
(81)
(288)
(16,311)
(6,566)
(4,853)
(17,052)

(110,797)

(85,613)
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05. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

2008
(17,073)
(2,348)

2007
(11,634)
(1,398)

Depreciation and amortization

(19,421)

(13,032)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Provision charges for staff leaving indemnities
Other provisions
Deposit Insurance Premium

2008
(858)
(26)
(1,982)
(1,704)

2007
(61)
(96)
(414)
(771)

Other operating expenses

(4,570)

(1,342)

Impairment loss for loans and advances ( Note 12)
Bad debts written off
Credit cost for consumer loans insurance with Garanta
Recoveries
Exchange differences

2008
(72,698)
(2,450)
1,512
1,375

2007
(13,709)
(1,313)
(14,969)
7,489
40

Credit loss expense

(72,261)

(22,462)

06. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND ADVANCES

07. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The bank calculates its income tax based upon the norms issued by the Ministry of Finance. The applicable
tax rate on profit for 2008 was 16% (2007: 16%).
Profit before tax
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 16%
Effect on tax of:
- income not subject to tax
- expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Other
Total income tax charge

2008
72,815
(11,650)

2007
43,512
(6,962)

86
(796)
1,193

528
(773)
169

(11,167)

(7,038)

The income tax expense consists of current and deferred income tax as follows:
Current income tax charge
Deferred tax charge

2008
(4,779)
(6,388)

2007
(2,589)
(4,449)

(11,167)

(7,038)

Deferred income taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the balance sheet liability method using
the enacted tax rate of 16% for 2008 (2007: 16%).
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07. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Provision at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Decrease due to investments securities AFS
Prior year’s adjustments and other adjustments
Provision at the end of the year

2008
(7,729)
(6,388)
616
(3)

2007
(8,989)
(4,449)
181
5,528

(13,504)

(7,729)

The Bank did not recognize any deferred tax liability in relation to statutory reserves as the Management does
not intend to use these reserves in the foreseeable future.
The amount of RON 5,528 thousands related to 2007 comprises the reversal of deferred tax liability of RON
5,658 thousands computed for credit risk and general banking risk reserve in 2006 as the Management
does not intend to use these reserves in the future and a additional tax liability of RON 130 thousands due
to effective interest rate computation for teaser loans granted up to the end of 2006 and carried to retained
earnings.
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

2008
3,293
(16,797)

2007
3,122
(10,851)

(13,504)

(7,729)

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007
are disclosed in the table below:
Impairment loss for loans and advances to customers
Investments securities - T-bills
Revaluation of intangibles
Revaluation of land and buildings
Effect of application of effective interest rate for teaser
loans
Post retirement benefits
Deferred tax assets (other temporary differences)
Deferred tax liability (other temporary differences)
Net deferred tax liabilities

2008
(7,117)
661
(10)
(1,030)

2007
(6,072)
44
(40)
(1,009)

(8,650)
227
2,415
-

(2,182)
173
2,905
(1,548)

(13,504)

(7,729)

2008

2007

97,759

59,529

97,759

59,529

08. CASH AND SHORT TERM FUNDS

Cash in hand
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09. DUE FROM NATIONAL BANK OF ROMANIA
Current account
In local currency
In foreign currency

2008

2007

519,590
2,050,179

318,138
1,083,840

2,569,769

1,401,978

The National Bank of Romania requires commercial banks to maintain an amount calculated as a percentage
of their funding other than local inter-bank originated for achieving the monetary policy targets. As of 31
December 2008 the required rate for RON and foreign currency compulsory reserves was 18% and 40%
respectively (31 December 2007: 20% and 40% respectively).
The level of the compulsory deposit reserve is computed once a month and must be maintained, on
average, in the form of cash held with the NBR. The compulsory reserve is denominated in USD for the
foreign currency deposits and borrowings and in RON for local currency funding (2007: EUR for the foreign
currency deposits and borrowings and in RON for local currency funding).
The interest rate paid by the NBR during 2007 was 2.5% - 5.6% p.a. for reserves held in RON and 0.8% 1.30% p.a. for reserves held in USD (2007: 1.9% - 2.5% p.a. for RON and 0.8% - 1.35% p.a. for EUR).

10. SECURITIES – AVAILABLE FOR SALE
2008

2007

Cost
At January 1,
Additions during the year
Disposals/redemptions during the year
Amortization of premiums and discounts
Gains/ (losses) from changes in fair value

36,459
97,530
(24,000)
(4,304)
3,879

44,447
(9,151)
1,163

At December 31,

109,564

36,459

The amount of RON 3,879 thousands (2007: RON 1,163 thousands) representing changes in fair value for
securities through equity includes:
- Gains / (Losses) from changes in fair value of AFS
investments
- Gains / (Losses) transferred to income statement

2008

2007

(4,018)
139

(1,223)
60

(3,879)

(1,163)

The bank holds bonds in RON and EURO issued by the Ministry of Finance with a carrying amount of
RON 109,564 thousands (2007: RON 36,459 thousands). They bear an annual coupon of 8.48% for local
currency bonds (market yield 14.36%) and 5.75% for EURO (market yield 10.53%). As at the end of 2007
coupon was for RON denominated bonds 8.51% p.a.(market yield 7.8%). Bonds in amount of RON 99,460
thousands (face value) are pledged for the Lombard overnight loan taken from National Bank of Romania.
The maturity analysis of the investment securities as at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 is
presented in Note 25.3
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11. DUE FROM OTHER BANKS
Sights deposits:
In local currency
In foreign currency
Term deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Collateral deposit
In local currency
In foreign currency

2008

2007

40,015
139,591

10,663

9,810
96,316

63,613
489,947

5
536

21
1,218

286,273

565,462

The interest rates for deposits denominated in RON and in foreign currency ranged from 2.75%
to 45% for RON, and from 3.2% to 9.25% for EURO, during the year ended December 31, 2008
(2007: 1.0% to 30% for RON and from 3.0% to 8.0% for EURO).

12.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Individuals
In local currency
In foreign currency
Companies
In local currency
In foreign currency

Provision for loan impairment

In local currency
In foreign currency

2008

2007

1,110,257
2,954,818

998,821
1,380,711

748,940
1,173,079

541,098
1,720,159

5,987,094

4,640,789

(109,840)

(37,142)

5,877,254

4,603,647

2008
762,199
2,568,385

2007
513,362
1,013,775

3,330,584

1,527,137

The loans structure according to contractual maturities is as follows:

Short term loan
Medium term loan
Long term loans
Overdue loans and in litigation
Provision for loan impairment
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2008
1,433,983
1,334,916
3,119,526
98,669
(109,840)

2007
1,453,849
1,416,811
1,736,399
33,730
(37,142)

5,877,254

4,603,647
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12. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

The loan portfolio structure on industries is revealing the concentration of the loan portfolio as at December
31, 2008 mainly in the private individuals 67.9% (2007: 51.27% of loan portfolio), trade 9.02% (2007:
11.85% of loan portfolio) and manufacturing industry 8.48% weight in loan portfolio (2007: 12.80% of loan
portfolio), the rest being distributed among leasing, constructions, transport and other areas. Respectively,
provisions are mainly originated by individuals (2008: 77.99% versus 87.76% as at end of 2007) and
corporate area (22.01% at December 31, 2008 versus 12.24% as at December 31, 2007).

2008

2007

Loans to individuals - at amortized cost
Overdrafts
Credit cards
Consumer loans
Mortgages
Auto financing
Other

4,065,075
674
24,766
2,195,829
1,843,765
25
16

2,379,532
555
29,220
1,504,362
845,092
78
225

Loans to corporate entities / professionals at amortized cost
Industry & mining
Trade and services (excl. tourism)
Construction and real estate development
Energy
Tourism
Transportation and telecommunications
Leasing
Syndicated loans
Professionals
Other

1,922,019
507,910
540,108
382,601
15,000
22,871
59,711
111,116
49,178
57
233,467

2,261,257
593,923
549,945
219,006

Total loans and advances to customers (gross)

5,987,094

4,640,789

47,443
58,967
118,795
68,095
3,616
601,467

Contractual interest rates on RON loans and advances during the year ended December 31, 2008 ranged
from 8.0% to 29.32% (2007: 7.78% to 28.75%). Interest rates on foreign currency loans during the year
ended December 31, 2008 ranged from 4.28% to 17.78% (2007: 5.1% to 14%).
Provision for impairment of loans and advances

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year (note 6)
At the end of the year
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2008

2007

37,142
72,698

23,433
13,709

109,840

37,142
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13.

OTHER ASSETS

Tax prepayments and other taxes
Sundry debtors
Advances for payments - fixed assets
Retention benefits to staff (loans at preferential interest
rates)
Prepayments
Accrued interest and commissions
Assets acquired through foreclosure proceedings
Credit card suspense
Other assets

2008
265
2,170
1,984

2007
2,101
3,491
2,459

34,390
7,288
1,026
172
414
367

8,209
379
172
2,219
246

48,076

19,276

The reclassiﬁcation from loans to other assets regarding retention beneﬁt for staff, meaning lower interest
rates applied to bank employees is not material for 2007, as this type of loans commenced to be granted
starting with the end of 2007.

14.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE
2008

2007

Cost
At January 1
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year
Provisions for impairment

547
289
-

1,830
(1,299)
16

At December 31

836

547

Equity investments comprise the following:

Company
Registrul Independent
Monitor
TransFonD
Biroul de Credite
MasterCard
International
Casa de Compensare
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Nature of
business

Area of
operation

2008

Percentage
2007

Financial services
Financial services
Central Credit
Monitoring

Romania
Romania

6.67%
2.78%

6.67%
2.78%

Romania

3.45%

less than 1%

Financial services
Financial services

Romania
Romania

less than 1%
less than 1%

less than 1%
less than 1%
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15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS & PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
2008

2007

Property and equipment
Cost or valuation
Fixed assets in course of construction
Less accumulated depreciation

171,295
956
(45,733)

127,515
9,765
(33,148)

Net book value

126,518

104,132

Intangible assets
Cost or valuation
Less accumulated amortization

43,732
(8,682)

34,226
(6,334)

Net book value

35,050

27,892

161,568

132,024

Total

The intangible assets consist of computer software.
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS & PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
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16. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

Loro
In local currency
In foreign currency
Sight deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Term deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Amounts owed to Central Bank
(overnight Lombard loan)
Amounts in transit

2008

2007

3,136
2,789

2,816
2,766

34,814
53,407

-

818,239
3,709,891

1,518,533
2,133,233

90,036
8,010

8,350

4,720,322

3,665,698

The interbank funding is mainly sustained by deposits taken from National Bank of Greece in amount of
RON 4,182,212 thousands as at December 31, 2008 (2007: RON 2,433,392 thousands).
As of 31 December 2008 the Bank had signiﬁcant concentration of funding from the parent company
National Bank of Greece as 55% (2007: 43%) of its total funding from banks and clients (notes 16,17
and 18). The Bank’s ability to obtain the ﬁnancial resources and the ability to obtain it at favourable rates
is dependent on situation on global market and its effect on local economy. The management of the
National Bank of Greece, as major shareholder of the Bank, has no plans for curtailment of its activities in
Romania.
The interest rates paid for term deposits denominated in RON and foreign currency during the year ended
31 December, 2008 ranged from 2% to 60% for RON deposits (2007: from 0.5% to 30%) and from 3%
to 9.6% for EUR deposits (2007: from 3.83% to 6.5%). The highest interest rates in the range presented
above were paid during the periods with low liquidity in the money market in the fourth quarter of 2008.
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17. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Sight deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Demand deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Term deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Collateral deposits
In local currency
In foreign currency
Certificates of deposit
In local currency
In foreign currency

2008

2007

125,898
29,916

-

141,124
171,983

294,646
178,663

1,636,205
1,053,267

948,304
874,324

2,000

213
5,241

54
3

72
64

3,160,450

2,301,527

18. OTHER BORROWED FUNDS

Subordinated loan

2008
262,444

2007
237,450

262,444

237,450

The subordinated loan obtained from National Bank of Greece is in amount of EUR 65 million received on
October 31, 2006 with the interest rate of 3 months EURIBOR plus 0.75%.The loan is maturing ﬁve years
after National Bank of Greece request submission. In case of special events requiring early repayment
the subordinated loan will be reimbursed to the creditor after repayment of all obligations towards the
depositors or other creditors with exception of obligations towards those creditors whose claims are
bound by a similar subordination clause.

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

2008

2007

Accrued expenses and deferred income

7,396

15,838

Current taxes

8,956

6,601

17

17

Personnel and related accruals

5,326

854

Other provisions

4,037

2,056

Other liabilities

2,853

2,815

28,585

28,181

Dividends
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Present value of unfunded obligations
Unrecognized actuarial gains (losses)

2008

2007

1,443
(22)

1,155
(70)

1,421

1,085

21. SHARE CAPITAL
The statutory issued share capital of Banca Românească SA is stated at RON 748,648,220 divided into
374,324,110 ordinary shares with a face value of RON 2 each. All issued shares are fully paid and carry one
vote. The difference between the nominal value of the statutory share capital of RON 748,648 thousands
and the carrying value of RON 835,339 is resulting from application of IAS 29 Hyperinﬂationary economies
until mid of 2004.
The statutory share capital of Banca Românească SA includes amounts contributed in foreign currencies
of approximately the equivalent of EUR 18,393,918 representing RON 61,272,000 at historical exchange
rates. The remaining balance was contributed in RON.
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Ordinary shares

I FRS share capital

RAS share
capital

Balance as at December 31, 2007
Issue of new shares in 2008

196,608,066
177,716,044

479,907
355,432

393,216
355,432

Balance as at December 31, 2008

374,324,110

835,339

748,648
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22. RECONCILIATION OF STATUTORY RESERVES TO IFRS ACCUMULATED RESULT
In accordance with the Romanian Law on banks and banking activities the Bank must distribute the proﬁt
as dividends or transfer to retained earnings (reserves) on the basis of ﬁnancial statements prepared in
accordance with RAS. Amounts transferred to reserves must be used for the purposes designed when
transfer is made.
Retained earnings as per statutory ﬁnancial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below.
Under the Romanian banking law the bank is required to create legal reserves from the appropriation of
earnings, appropriated at the rate of 5% of proﬁt up to a limit of 20% of the share capital.
Up to the end of 2006 the Bank created reserves for general banking risk, appropriated from proﬁt before
tax up to the rate of 1% assets at risk, in accordance with the regulations set by National Bank of Romania.
Since January 1st, 2007 there are no more legal requirements to create reserve for general banking risk
from the gross proﬁt.
After deducting taxes and setting aside the legal reserves as discussed above the remaining balance of
net proﬁt was distributed to shareholders’ equity.
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Reconciliation of equity RAS – IFRS
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A party is related to an entity if directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries).
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
signiﬁcant inﬂuence over the other party in making ﬁnancial or operational decisions.
The main other companies from National Bank of Greece Group (the main shareholder of the company,
holding 88.70% of the bank’s shares) in relation with Banca Romaneasca are: Ethniki Hellenic General
Insurance, Eteba Romania, Eurial Leasing SRL, NBG London, NBG Management Services and NBG
Finance PLC.
A number of banking transactions is entered into with related parties in the normal course of business.
These include loans, deposits and foreign currency transactions. The volumes of related party transactions,
outstanding balances at the year-end, and relating expense and income for the year are as follows:
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Balances as
at
December
31, 2008
Nostro
Accounts
Currency
swaps
(forward leg
not settled)
Currency
forward
agreements
Loans
Other assets
Prepaid
expenses
Total assets
Time
Deposits
Demand
deposits
Currency
swaps
Currency
swaps
(forward leg
not settled)
Loro
Accounts
Loan
subordinated
Other
liabilities
Total
liabilities
Financial
guarantees
Commitments
to extend
credit
Total off
balance
sheet items
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National
Bank of
Greece
Athens

Ethniki
Hellenic
General
Insurance

NBG
London

NBG
Finance
PLC

National
P&K
Securities
S.A.

Ethnoplan
S.A.

1,226

-

2,231

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,021
-

-

54,706
1

-

-

143
-

-

-

200

-

-

-

-

-

-

29,550

2,221

-

54,707

2,231

-

143

-

4,179,505

20,782

2,945

88,866

-

-

7,792

-

1,599

639

92

3,987

-

-

-

-

36,558

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

788

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,707

-

-

-

-

639

-

-

262,444

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

797

4,483,601

21,421

3,037

92,853

-

639

7,792

797

-

-

-

2,216

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,826

-

-

1,993

-

-

-

-

10,042

-

-

1,993

-

Eteba
Romania

Eurial
Leasing
SRL

-

-

27,491

-

833
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Loans to Board of Directors members amounts to RON 15 thousands as at December 31, 2008 (December
31, 2007: RON 17 thousands). The salaries expenses with directors in 2008 amounted to RON 2,807
thousands (2007: RON 2,290 thousands).
The performance bonuses paid during 2008 for 2007 and accrued as at December 31, 2007 amounted to
RON 520 thousands (2007: RON 41 thousands payment for year 2006 and accrued as at end of 2006).
The transactions with shareholders were priced mainly on arm length basis.
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Transactions during the year 2007 concluded between the bank and related parties were as
follows:
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25.

RISK MANAGEMENT

25.1 CREDIT RISK (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

This represents a worse case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2008 and 2007,
without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance-sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the balance sheet.
As above, 79% of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advances to customers (2007:
73%) as due from banks has a weight of 4% in total (2007: 9%).
The table below describes the credit quality of loans and advances to customers at 31 December 2008 and
2007. The line “Not past due and collectively impaired” refer to the current portfolio of retail and corporate
loans and that were not past due at the balance sheet date and were assessed collectively for impairment
as explained above in “Impairment and provisioning policies”.

54

$QQXDO5HSRUW

The total impairment provision for loans and advances is RON 109,840 thousands (2007: RON 37,142
thousands) of which RON 11,224 thousands (2007: RON 2,292 thousands) represents the provision for
individually impaired loans and the remaining amount of RON 98,616 thousands (2007: RON 34,850
thousands) represents the collective provision. The fair value of collateral for loans individually impaired is
estimated at RON 8,000 thousand as at December 31, 2008 (2007: RON 12,765 thousands).
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The Bank renegotiated the contractual terms for corporate loans of RON 3,536 thousands as at December
31, 2008, while as at the end of 2007 the renegotiated loans amounted to RON 3,609 thousands.
Loans not past due and collectively impaired are disclosed according to their credit quality in the tables
below:

The loans grouped under satisfactory risk include A category loans, watch B category loans, while
substandard loans comprise C, D and E categories, rating being allocated based on NBR criteria considering
the following factors:
• for corporate loans : 1. qualitative factors: management quality, company’s shareholders quality,
commercial policy quality, market conditions, collaterals other than those that are to be deducted
from the exposure; 2. quantitative factors: current liquidity, quick liquidity, solvency ratio, debt ratio,
proﬁtability, foreign exchange risk;
• for loans granted to individuals: age at analysis date, maximum number of delay days in the last
12 months at Banca Romaneasca
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Aging analysis of loans past due but not impaired

Loans past due but not impaired comprise consumer loans with mortgage and mortgage loans
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25.2.2 Derivatives
The derivatives traded by the Bank includes foreign exchange derivatives (forward and swaps contracts).
The unrealized result from open forward leg of derivatives is presented below, split over the remaining
maturity of the contracts. The loss from forward leg of swaps is off set by the gain from balance sheet
position generated from spot leg of swaps.
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25.2.3 Currency risk
Amounts of assets and liabilities held in RON and in foreign currency at December 31, 2007 and December
31, 2006 are analyzed as follows:
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2007
Asset
Cash and
short term
funds
Balances
with
National
Bank of
Romania
Investment
securities
(AFS)
Due from
other banks
Derivative
financial
instruments
Loans and
advances
to
customers,
net
Other
assets
Equity
investment
Fixed
assets
Total
assets
Liabilities
Deposits
from banks
Deposits
from
customers
Other
borrowed
funds
Derivative
financial
instruments
Other
liabilities
Deferred
tax liability
Total
liabilities
Balance
sheet
position
Off
balance
sheet
position
FX
position
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EUR

USD

CHF

JPY

GBP

Other

Local
currency

Total

24,017

3,323

771

-

394

83

30,941

59,529

1,083,840

-

-

-

-

-

318,138

1,401,978

-

-

-

-

-

-

36,459

36,459

440,375

59,883

157

132

1,183

97

63,635

565,462

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,066

1,066

2,697,371

23,558

331,104

6,120

-

-

1,545,494

4,603,647

-

-

-

-

-

-

16,817

16,817

-

24

-

-

-

-

523

547

-

-

-

-

-

-

134,483

134,483

4,245,603

86,788

332,032

6,252

1,577

180

2,147,556

6,819,988

1,797,398

9,871

323,379

6,106

9

-

1,528,935

3,665,698

973,272

77,719

5,347
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1,767

115

1,243,246

2,301,527

237,450

-

-

-

-

-

-

237,450

-

-

-

-

-

-

45,825

45,825

4,574

373

114

4

14

1

24,186

29,266

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,729

7,729

3,012,694

87,963

328,840

6,171

1,790

116

2,849,921

6,287,495

1,232,909

(1,175)

3,192

81

(213)

64

(1,234,858)

-

(1,224,686)

891

(2,531

-

(7,454)

-

1,233,780

-

8,223

(284)

661

81

(7,667)

64

(1,078)

-
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25.2 MARKET RISK (continued)
25.2.4 Nominal and effective interest rate

The table above presents the nominal interest rates applied by the Bank in 2007 and 2008, while effective
interest rate includes the commissions recognized as part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and
effective interest rate for teaser loans.

25.2.5 Interest rate risk
Cash ﬂow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash ﬂows of a ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
ﬁnancial instrument will ﬂuctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The table below comprises the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Bank’s ﬁnancial
instruments at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.
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25.2 MARKET RISK (continued)
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25.2 MARKET RISK (continued)
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25.3 LIQUIDITY RISK
The Bank’s policy on liquidity is to maintain sufﬁcient liquid resources to meet its obligations as they fall
due. Total assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 are analyzed over the remaining period to the contractual maturity date in the
tables below. Certain types of loans are renewed and accordingly short terms loans can have long-term
duration.
The amounts of assets and liabilities analyzed over the contractual period repayment date as at December
31, 2008 are as follows:
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25.3 LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)
The amounts of assets and liabilities analyzed over the contractual period repayment date as at
December 31, 2007 are as follows:
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25.3 LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)
The amounts of assets and liabilities analyzed over the contractual period repayment date as at December
31, 2007 are as follows:
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25.3 LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)
The report below presents the cash ﬂows payable by the Bank under non-derivative ﬁnancial liabilities by
remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash ﬂows, whereas the Bank manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected
undiscounted cash inﬂows.
Commitments to extend credit can result in a cash outﬂow at any moment as per loans contractual terms.
Financial guarantees are considered for liquidity, based on the earliest contractual maturity date.
For the operating leasing contracts (rental contracts) where the Bank is the lessee, the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are disclosed below.
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25.4 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Fair value of ﬁnancial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2007 is presented in the table below:

Due from other banks
Due from other banks comprises money market deposits placed and amounts in the course of collection.
The fair value of ﬂoating interest rate placements is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of ﬁxed
interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash ﬂows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for similar products.
Loans and advances to customers
Carrying amount of loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of
ﬁxed interest rate loans and advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash ﬂows
expected to be received. Fair value is computed based on expected cash ﬂows discounted at current
market rates.
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities available for sale contain t-bills issued by Ministry of Finance which are disclosed
at fair value based on valuation technique discounting the future cash ﬂows by yields provided by three
market makers.
Due to other banks
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The
estimated fair value of ﬁxed interest deposits is based on discounted cash ﬂows using interest rates for
similar products.
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Due to other customers
The estimated fair value of ﬁxed interest deposits is based on discounted cash ﬂows using interest rates
for similar products.
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is the amount repayable on demand.
Other borrowed funds
Other borrowed funds comprise the subordinated loan with undetermined maturity and the fair value is
considered equal to its carrying amount as the loan bears a variable interest rate which reprices regularly.

25.5 CAPITAL ADEQUACY (continued)
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26. COMMITIMENTS AND CONTIGENCIES
Issued guarantees and letters of credit
The Bank issues guarantees and letters of credit on behalf of its customers. The credit risk on guarantees is
similar to that arising from granting of loans. In the event of a claim on the Bank as a result of a customer’s
default on a guarantee these instruments also present a degree of liquidity risk to the Bank.
The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required.
Guarantees which represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will make payments in the event that a
customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as loans.

Credit commitments
Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of
loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank
is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.
However, the likely amount of loss, though not easy to quantify, is considerably less than the total unused
commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining
speciﬁc credit standards. While there is some credit risk associated with the remainder of commitments,
the risk is viewed as modest, since it result from the possibility of unused portions of loan authorizations
being drawn by the customer and, seconds, from these drawings subsequently not being repaid as due.
The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments
generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements,
since many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
The operating leasing comprises the commitments undertaken by the Bank within the contracts concluded
for renting locations for branches activity.
The following indicates the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-balance sheet ﬁnancial instruments that
commit it to extend credit to customers.
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As of December 31, 2008 and the issuance date of these ﬁnancial statements the bank is involved in
several commercial, civil and labour litigations. Claims against the Bank are made in the normal course
of business. The management of the Bank is resisting all current claims, and it is in their opinion that no
material losses will be incurred.

Taxation risk
The taxation system in Romania is subject to varying interpretations and to constant changes, which may
be retroactive. Although the actual tax due in transactions may be minimal, penalties can be signiﬁcant as
they calculated based on the value of the transaction and are at a minimum of 0.1% per day but can be`
well in excess of this. In Romania, tax periods remain open for tax audit for 5 years.
Tax audit carried by Ministry of Finance representatives covered the period up to the end of 2005.
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9. Contacts:
9.1.

THE BANK’S NETWORK

Headquarters
Phone: (021) 305 93 00
Address: Bucharest, sector 3, 35, Unirii Blvd. Bl. A3,
zip code 030822
Fax: (021) 305 95 81
E-mail: office@brom.ro
Web: www.banca-romaneasca.ro

Head Offices
Union International Business Center
Address: 11 Ion Campineanu Street, District 1,
Bucharest, 1st and 5th floor,
Phone: (021) 305 90 00
Fax: (021) 305 91 91
Upground Business Center
Address: 3 George Constantinescu Street, District 2,
Bucharest
Phone: (021) 304 81 36
Fax: (021) 304 82 82

Risk Management Division
Head of Division: Codin-Radu NASTASE
Phone: (021) 305 90 60
Human Resources Division
Head of Division: Catalina TOMA
Phone: (021) 304 80 20
General Secretariat Division
Head of Division: Dionisie-Daniel ANTONESCU
Phone: (021) 305 90 10
Legal Division
Head of Division: Mariana NEDELEA
Phone: (021) 305 82 10
Business Processes & Organisation Division
Head of Division: Perikles GIAVASOGLOU
Phone: (021) 305 93 05

Head Office Structure

Internal Audit Division
Head of Division: Alina DIMITRIU
Phone: (021) 304 81 50

General Manager
Andreas Theodoros MARAGKOUDAKIS
Phone: (021) 305 90 02

Operations Division
Head of Division: Maria PANA
Phone: (021) 305 80 70

Deputy General Manager
Crina COSMA
Phone: (021) 305 93 08

Branch Network Division
Head of Division: Tica DUMITRU
Phone: (021) 305 92 20

Chief Financial Officer
Traian HALALAI
Phone: (021) 304 80 03

Small and Medium Enterprises Department
Manager: Mirela RUJEA
Phone: (021) 305 91 10

Executive Director Retail and Branch Network
Divisions
Lakis KOUNINIS
Phone: (021) 305 90 05

IT & Telecommunication Division
Head of Division: Serban Adrian AIZIC
Phone: (021) 305 94 60

Executive Director Large Corporate Division
Head of Division: Cosmin-Antoine-Constantin CALIN
Phone: (021) 305 90 22
Chief Information Officer
Aris VRONGISTINOS
Phone: (021) 305 93 07
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Treasury Division
Head of Division: Dimitris POLITIS
Phone: (021) 305 93 12

Accounting and Finance Division
Head of Division: Grigore GAVRILESCU
Phone: (021) 304 80 40
Finance and MIS Division
Head of Division: Lidia STAN
Phone: (021) 304 80 50
Compliance Department
Manager: Georgica RAICU
Phone: (021) 304 81 40
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9.2. Branches
1.Bucharest- 13 SEPTEMBRIE
119, 13 Septembrie Avenue, Block 125,
1st Floor , District 5, Bucharest
2.BUCHAREST – AMZEI
1-3 Cristian Tell Street, District1,
Bucharest
3.BUCHAREST – APUSULUI
186-188 Iuliu Maniu Street, Block E1,
District 6, Bucharest
4. BUCHAREST - BANEASA
10 Bucharest-Ploiesti Road, District 1,
Bucharest
5. BUCHAREST – BERCENI
25 Berceni Avenue, Block 38, District 4,
041905 Bucharest
6. BUCHAREST – BRANCOVEANU
56 Oltenitei Avenue, Block 11C, District
4, Bucharest
7. BUCHAREST - CALARASILOR
Calarasilor (Corneliu Coposu) Avenue ,
Block 103CA, Bucharest
8. BUCHAREST – CALEA VICTORIEI
153 Victoriei Avenue, Block D4, Entrance
2, District 1, Bucharest
9. BUCHAREST – CHITILEI
101 Chitilei Avenue, District 1, Bucharest
10. BUCHAREST – COLENTINA
Dna Ghica Street 8, Block 2, district 2,
Bucharest
11. BUCHAREST – CRANGASI
25-27 Calea Crangasi Avenue, Block 2021, District 6, Bucharest

40.ALEXANDRIA
246 Libertatii Street, Alexandria,
Teleorman County

61.CLUJ NAPOCA
14-20 Mihai Viteazu Street, 400151, Cluj
Napoca

21. BUCHAREST – IANCULUI
107-119 Mihai Bravu Avenue, District 2,
Bucharest

41.ARAD
Revolutiei Boulevard 96, 310025 Arad,
Arad County

62.CLUJ NAPOCA – GHEORGHENI
165 N. Titulescu Boulevard, Block V,
Entrance 2, Cluj

22. BUCHAREST – LACUL TEI
113 Lacul Tei Boulevard, Block 6,
District 2, Bucharest

42.ARAD – STATION
10 Revolutiei Boulevard, Block 10, App.
33, Ground Floor, Arad, Arad County

63.CLUJ NAPOCA – MANASTUR
11A Bucegi Street, Block B-B1,
Entrance 1, Cluj Napoca

23. BUCHAREST – LIZEANU
226 Stefan cel Mare Avenue, Block 44,
Ground floor, District 3, Bucharest

43.ARAD – UTA
57 Aurel Vlaicu Avenue, Block U5, Arad,
Arad County

24. BUCHAREST – MILITARI
14 Iuliu Maniu Boulevard, Block 13,
District 6, Bucharest

44.BACÃU
24, 9 Mai Street, 601151 Bacau, Bacau
County

25 BUCHAREST – MOSILOR
207 Mosilor Avenues, District 2,
Bucharest

45.BACAU – SIRET
82-84, 9 Mai Street, Section C, Bacau,
Bacau County

26. BUCHAREST – PALLADY
137, 1 Decembrie 1918 Boulevard,
District 3, Bucharest

46.BAIA MARE
6 Traian Boulevard, Baia Mare 430212,
Maramures County

27. BUCHAREST – PALLADY
HELIOS
47 Theodor Pallady Boulevard , District
3, Bucharest

47.BAIA MARE – AURORA
34 George Cosbuc Street, Baia Mare,
Maramures County

28. BUCHAREST – PANTELIMON
256 Pantelimon Avenue, District 2,
Bucharest
29. BUCHAREST – PIPERA
4C, Pipera Tunari Street, Voluntari, Ilfov
30. BUCHAREST – RAHOVA
327 Rahovei Avenue, Block 11, Ground
floor , District 5, Bucharest
31. BUCHAREST – ROSETTI
23 Carol Boulevard, District 3, Bucharest

12. BUCHAREST – DIMITRIE
POMPEIU
6A Dimitrie Pompeiu Avenue, Ground
floor, Entrance 16, District 2, Bucharest

32. BUCHAREST – SMB
33 Unirii Boulevard, District 3,
Bucharest

13. BUCHAREST - DOMENII
70-82 Ion Mihalache Avenue, Block 45,
District 1, Bucharest

33. BUCHAREST – TITAN
12 Liviu Rebreanu Boulevard, District 3,
Bucharest

14. BUCHAREST – DRISTOR
306 Mihai Bravu Avenue, Block 13A,
District 3, Bucharest

34. BUCHAREST – TITULESCU
14 Titulescu Boulevard, Block 21,
District 1, Bucharest

15. BUCHAREST – DRUMUL
TABEREI
90 Drumul Taberei, Block C8, District 6,
Bucharest

35. BUCHAREST – UNION
Ion Campineanu Street 11, District 1,
Bucharest

16. BUCHAREST – FERDINAND
146 Ferdinand I Boulevard, Ground floor,
district 2, Bucharest
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20. BUCHAREST – HALA TRAIAN
116-122 Calarasilor Avenue, Entrance C,
District 3, Bucharest

36. BUCHAREST – UNIRII
4 Unirii Avenue, Block BIII, Entrance 2,
District 4, Bucharest

48.BARLAD
3 Stefan cel Mare Boulevard, Block C3,
Barlad, Vaslui County
49.BISTRITA
46 Decebal Boulevard, Bistrita Nasaud
County
50.BRASOV
1 Traian Grozavescu Street, Ground
floor, Brasov, Brasov County
51.BRASOV – ASTRA
78A Bucuresti Avenue, Brasov
52.BRASOV – GRIVITEI
67 Grivitei Boulevard, Brasov
53.BRASOV – VLAHUTA
40 Al. Vlahuta Boulevard, Block 120,
Ground Floor, Brasov County
54.BRAILA
51 Calarasilor Avenue, Block 104,
810019 Braila
55.BRAILA - TRAIAN
3 Traian Square, Braila
56.BOTOSANI
172 Nationala Avenue, Block H2-H3,
Botosani
57.BUZÃU
Unirii Boulevard , Block 13 AB, 120020
Buzau

64.CLUJ NAPOCA - MARASTI
135, 21 Decembrie 1989 Boulevard,
Block M3, Cluj Napoca
65.CLUJ NAPOCA – ZORILOR
FN/54 Observatorului/Viilor Street, Floor
P, Cluj Napoca
66.CONSTANTA
69 Mamaia Boulevard, Block TLI,
900590 Constanta, Constanta County
67.CONSTANŢA DORALY
Expo Market Doraly, Aurel Vlaicu
Boulevard , 82 Mangaliei Avenue,
Constanta
68.CONSTANTA – MAREA NEAGRA
128 Stefan cel Mare street, Block F-F1,
Constanta
69.CONSTANTA – SOVEJA
118 Dezrobirii Street, Block IS5, Ground
floor, Constanta
70.CONSTANTA – TOMIS NORD
19 Cismelei Street, Constanta
71.CONSTANTA – TROCADERO
77 Alexandru Lapusneanu Boulevard,
Block LV6, Constanta
72.CRAIOVA
6 Alexandru Ioan Cuza Street, 200138,
Craiova, Dolj County
73.CRAIOVA – GARA
1 Piata Garii Street, Craiova, Dolj County
74.CRAIOVA – PIATA CENTRALA
Bucuresti Avenue, Block A23-24, Dolj
County
75.CRAIOVA – SARARI
59A Henri Coanda Street, Block M52,
Entrance 2, Ground floor , Dolj County
76.CRAIOVA – STIRBEI VODA
19 Stirbei Voda Boulevard, Block D3AD4A, Dolj County
77.CURTEA DE ARGES
125 Basarabilor Boulevard, Curtea de
Arges, Arges County

17. BUCHAREST – GARA de NORD
146 Grivitei Avenue, District 1, Bucharest

37. BUCHAREST – VERGULUI
19 Lucretiu Patrascanu Street, Block
M18A, District 3, Bucharest

58.BUZAU – UNIRII
Unirii Boulevard, Block B11, Buzau

18. BUCHAREST – GHENCEA
34 Ghencea Boulevard, Block 65, District
6, Bucharest

38. ALBA IULIA
11B Iuliu Maniu Square, Block 280,
Entrance A, Ground floor , Alba Iulia

59.CALARASI
5 Prelungirea Bucuresti Street, Block
C19, Calarasi

78.DEVA
Decebal Boulevard, Block B, 330169,
Deva, Hunedoara County

19. BUCHAREST – GIURGIULUI
119 Giurgiului Street, Block 11, District 4,
Bucharest

39.ALBA IULIA – CASTLE
16 Victoriei Street, Alba Iulia, Alba
County

60.CAMPINA
4-6 Carol I Boulevard , Block 1A-1B,
Campina, Prahova County

79.DEVA – DECEBAL
1, 1 Decembrie Boulevard, Block 4A,
Deva, Hunedoara County
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80.DROBETA TURNU SEVERIN
86 Traian Street, Block T8, Drobeta
Turnu Severin, Mehedinti County

98.MIOVENI
Dacia Street, Block V2B, Mioveni, Arges
County

115.PUCIOASA
Republicii Street , Block Delia, Entrace
B, Pucioasa, Dambovita County

132.SLOBOZIA
Matei Basarab Street, Block U, Slobozia,
Ialomita

81.FAGARAS
Unirii Boulevard , Block 1, Fagaras,
Brasov County

99.ODORHEIU SECUIESC
15 Rakoczi Ferenc Street, Block R3,
Odorheiu Secuiesc, Harghita County

116.RADAUTI
67 Piata Unirii Street, Radauti, Suceava
County

133.SUCEAVA
4 Nicolae Bălcescu Street, 720002,
Suceava

82.FOCSANI
66 Republicii Street, Focsani, Vrancea
County

100.ONESTI
23 Oituz Boulevard, Onesti, Bacau County

117.RAMNICU VALCEA
General Magheru Street , Block G,
Ramnicu Valcea, Valcea County

134.TÂRGU MURES
18 Piata Victoriei Avenue, 540053, Targu
Mures, Mures County

118.RAMNICU VALCEA –
OSTROVENI
6 – 8 Tineretului Boulevard, Ramnicu
Valcea

135.TARGU MURES – TUDOR
VLADIMIRESCU
255, 1 Decembrie 1918 Boulevard, Targu
Mures, Mures County

119.REGHIN
1 Mihai Viteazu Street, Reghin, Mures
County

136.TARGOVISTE
Carol I Boulevard , Block G4, Targoviste,
Dambovita County

120.RESITA
Republicii Street 22, Entrance B, Resita,
Caras-Severin County

137.TARGU JIU
44 Victoriei Street, Targu Jiu, Gorj
County

121.ROMAN
Nicolae Titulescu Street, Block 11,
Neamt County

138.TIMISOARA
Timisoara 700 Square 1, 300080
Timisoara, Timis County

122.ROSIORII DE VEDE
Rahovei Street , Block 110, Floor P,
Rosiori de Vede, Teleorman County

139.TIMISOARA – ARIES
20 Aries Street, Timisoara, Timis County

83.FOCSANI - UNIRII
51 Unirii Boulevard, Block C, Entrance 1
and 2, Focsani, Vrancea County
84.GALATI
2 Nicolae Balcescu Street, 800041, Galati
85.GALATI – DUNAREA
40 Piata Energiei Street, Block M1B,
Galati
86.GALATI – BRAILEI
202 Brailei Street, Block B9, Galati
87.GALATI – SIDERURGISTILOR
9 Siderurgistilor Boulevard , Entrance 5,
Block PS2, Ground Floor, Galati, Galati
County
88.GIURGIU
Bucuresti Avenue , Block 202/5D,
Entrance E, Ground floor, Giurgiu
County
89.HUNEDOARA
6 bis Dacia Boulevard, Hunedoara
90.IASI
2 Sf.Lazar Street, 700044, Iasi
91.IASI – UNIRII
5 Stefan cel Mare si Sfant Boulevard, Iasi
92.IASI – PACURARI
124 Pacurari Street, Block 583, Entrance
B, Iasi County
93.IASI – PODU ROS
SF. Lazar Street, Block A1-3, Iasi
County
94.LUGOJ
36, 20 Decembrie 1989 Street, Lugoj,
Timis County
95.MANGALIA
6 Constantei Avenue, Block M,
Mangalia, Constanta County
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101.ORADEA
35 Piata Independentei Street, Block A6,
410067, Oradea, Bihor County
102.ORADEA NUFARUL
59 Nufarului Street, Block C59, Oradea,
Bihor County
103.ORADEA - REPUBLICII
3-5 Republicii Street, Oradea, Bihor
County
104.PASCANI
Stefan cel Mare Street , Block A4,
Entrance B, Pascani, Iasi County
105.PIATRA NEAMT
13 Republicii Boulevard, Piatra Neamt,
Neamt County
106.PIATRA NEAMT – PIETRICICA
15 Traian Boulevard, Block A3, Ground
Floor , Piatra Neamt, Neamt County
107.PITESTI
Republicii Boulevard , Block D6A,
110058, Pitesti, Arges County

123.SATU MARE
11 Piata Libertatii Street, 440014, Satu
Mare County
124.SATU MARE – SOMES
22 Careiului Street, Block CM1, Satu
Mare County

108.PITESTI – EXERCITIU
Exercitiu Street , Block D15, Pitesti, Arges
County

125.SIBIU
12 Vasile Milea Boulevard, 550331,
Sibiu

109.PITESTI – GAVANA
1 Decembrie 1918 Street , Block M4,
Pitesti, Arges County

126.SIGHETU MARMATIEI
12, 1 Decembrie 1918 Boulevard, Block
O2, Sighetul Maramatiei, Maramures

110.PITESTI PRUNDU
Petrochimistilor Boulevard , Block B8,
Floor P, Pitesti, Arges County

127.SIGHISOARA
33 Herman Oberth Street, Sighisoara,
Mures County

111.PLOIESTI
1A C. D. Gherea Street, Block D and E,
Ploiesti, Prahova County

128.SINAIA
8 Carol I Boulevard, Ground floor,
Sinaia, Prahova County

112.PLOIESTI – MIHAI BRAVU
32-38 Gradinari Street, Ground Floor,
Ploiesti, Prahova County

129.SEBES
77-79 Lucian Blaga Street, Sebes, Alba
Iulia

140.TIMISOARA – BARNUTIU
67-71 Simion Barnutiu Street, Timisoara,
Timis County
141.TIMISOARA – CALEA
ARADULUI
32 Aradului Avenue, Timisoara, Timis
County
142.TIMISOARA – CALEA
SAGULUI
72-78 Sagului Avenue, Timisoara, Timis
County
143.TIMISOARA - PIATA IOSEFIN
18 Tineretii Boulevard, Timisoara, Timis
County
144.TULCEA
1 Isaccei Street, Block M1, Tulcea,
Tulcea County
145.TURDA
15 Republicii Street, Turda, Cluj County
146.URZICENI
Aurora Street , Block 54B, Entrance A,
Urziceni, Ialomita County

96.MEDIAS
4 Mihai Eminescu Street, Medias, Sibiu
County

113.PLOIESTI – PALTINIS
1 Enachita Vacarescu Street, Block 130 D,
Prahova County

130.SFANTU GHEORGHE
1 Decembrie 1918 Boulevard , Block 18,
Entrance Ib, Ground floor, Sf.Gheorghe,
Covasna County

147.VASLUI
Stefan cel Mare Street , Block 199,
Vaslui, Vaslui County

97.MIERCUREA CIUC
6 Majlath Gusztav Karoly, Miercurea
Ciuc, Harghita County

114.PLOIESTI - REPUBLICII
110 Republicii Boulevard, Block 11A,
Ploiesti, Prahova County

131.SLATINA
A.I.Cuza Boulevard , Block D3, Olt
County

148.ZALAU
24 Mihai Viteazu Boulevard, Block C3,
Zalau, Salaj County
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9.3. Correspondent Banks
CONTURI NOSTRO
EUR:
Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt am Main
Credit Industriel et Commercial, Paris
ING Belgium SA/NV, Brussels
Intesa Sanpaolo SpA, Milan
National Bank of Greece SA, Athens
Standard Chartered Bank (Germany) GmbH, Frankfurt am Main
USD
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, New York
Standard Chartered Bank, New York
CHF
Credit Suisse, Zürich
GBP
National Bank of Greece SA, London
JPY
Standard Chartered Bank, Tokyo
MULTICURRENCY (AUD, CAD, CHF, CZK, DKK, EUR, GBP, HUF, JPY, NOK, PLN, SEK, USD)
BRD-Groupe Société Générale SA, Bucharest

CONTURI DECONTARE TRANZACTII CARDURI
DECONTARE MASTERCARD
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK GERMANY - GMBH, EUR
HSBC BANK USA - USD
DECONTARE VISACARD
HSBC BANK USA - USD
NATIONAL BANK OF GREECE - EUR

CONTURI LORO
CREDITCOOP CASA CENTRALA - EUR
CR FIRENZE ROMANIA SA - EUR, USD
CREDIT EUROPE ROMANIA SA - EUR, USD
ATE BANK ROMANIA (FORMERLY MINDBANK) - EUR, USD
NATIONAL BANK OF GREECE - USD, RON
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www.banca-romaneasca.ro

